
















Town of Surfside 
Town Special Commission Meeting 

Proposed Budget 
MINUTES 

July 14, 2015 
 5 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

1. Opening

A. Call to Order
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 5:04 P.M. 

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present: 
Mayor Dietch, Vice Mayor Tourgeman, Commissioner Olchyk, Commissioner 
Karukin and Commissioner Cohen. 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Police Chief Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance 

D. Presentation/Overview of FY 15/16 Budget – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
and Donald Nelson, Finance Director 
Town Manager Guillermo Olmedillo stated that the purpose of the meeting was to 
establish the Millage Rate.  The Town administration recommended to keep the same 
Millage Rate of 5.0293 Mills. 
Finance Director Donald Nelson gave a brief explanation and presented a PowerPoint 
presentation that provided the Town Commission with the information needed to 
adopt a Millage Rate. 

E. Proposed Operating Millage Rate – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, DETERMINING A PROPOSED OPERATING 
MILLAGE RATE, DETERMINING THE CURRENT YEAR ROLLED-BACK 
RATE; ESTABLISHING THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE FOR THE FIRST 
AND SECOND PUBLIC BUDGET HEARINGS AS REQUIRED BY LAW; 
DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO FILE SAID RESOLUTION WITH 
THE PROPERTY APPRAISER OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PURSUANT TO 
THE REQUIREMENTS OF FLORIDA STATUTES AND THE RULES AND 
REGULATIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FOR THE STATE 
OF FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

3A

Page 1



Minutes 
 Special Town Commission Meeting 

Proposed Budget 
July 16, 2014 

 
  

2 

  
 

After some discussion Commissioner Karukin made a motion to keep the Millage 
Rate at 5.0293 Mills and established the first budget hearing for September 8, 2015 at 
5:01 PM in Town Hall, located at 9293 Harding Avenue and to established the second 
and final budget hearing for September 21, 2015 at 5:01 PM in Town Hall, located at 
9293 Harding Avenue.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Cohen.  
The motion carried 4-1 with Commissioner Olchyk voting in opposition. 

 
      2. Adjournment  

Vice Mayor Tourgeman made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Karukin 
seconded the motion and the meeting adjourned at 5:52 p.m. 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 

 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2015 

 
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, CMC 
Town Clerk 

 

Page 2



 
Town of Surfside 

Town Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

July 14, 2015 
 7 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

      
        

 

  

1. Opening        

A. Call to Order 
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.   
        

B. Roll Call of Members  
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  
Mayor Dietch, Vice Mayor Tourgeman, Commissioner Olchyk, Commissioner 
Karukin and Commissioner Cohen.  
  

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Police Chief Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 

D. Mayor and Commission Remarks – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Commissioner Karukin thanked Yami St.Cloud for organizing the car wash 
benefiting the Alzheimer’s Association and that Surfside is number one in the County 
on fundraising for Alzheimer’s.     
Vice Mayor Tourgeman said an article in the Sun Sentinel referred to Surfside as on 
the “quaint side” which is very nice.   The Vice Mayor also gave an update on the 
meeting of the Tourist Board.  Commissioner Olchyk had questions regarding the 
cost of the holiday lighting budgeted by the Tourist Board. 
Commissioner Cohen welcomed everyone and said the millage rate will remain the 
same and not go up and urged all to be aware of the upcoming budget meetings. 
 

E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman requested to move item 9B Parking Garage to be heard after 
the Consent Agenda and Item 9H Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
to be heard after Item 1I.   Commissioner Karukin would like to move Item 4B1 
ahead of 4A1 and link 9G and 4B1. 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the new Order of Business.  Vice 
Mayor Tourgeman seconded the motion and all voted in favor. 
 

F. Community Notes – Mayor Daniel Dietch  
Mayor Dietch announced the upcoming community events which can be found in the 
Gazette and on the Town’s website.  The Mayor acknowledged the passing of long 
time resident Marty Gillman.   He also acknowledged the Mayor’s of coastal 

Page 3



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 14, 2015 
 

  

2 

  
 

communities who have come together to form a beach alliance to speak with one 
voice on beach renourishment. 
 

G. Legislative Report – Fausto Gomez, Gomez Barker Associates, Inc. 
Mr. Gomez gave an update on the legislative report and although some issues were 
vetoed the town of Surfside did well.   Commissioner Cohen asked what was on the 
future agenda in Tallahassee and Mr. Gomez gave an overview of what is proposed 
and he will be meeting with Town Manager Olmedillo.    

 
H. Osher Lifelong Learning Institute at Florida International University – 

Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Manager Olmedillo presented the item and Duncan Travares introduced Norman 
Orovitz from FIU who explained the program and what is being done with the funds 
donated. 
 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman made a motion to approve the donation to FIU.   The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in favor. 
 

I. Bicycle Action Committee (BAC) – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Manager Olmedillo presented the item and said BAC is requesting a $350 donation 
and the use of the city seal and color code on their outfits.   The Chairman of BAC 
gave further details on the item.   
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve.   The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor. 
 

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings (None) 
 

3. Consent Agenda 
Mayor Dietch pulled a section of the police report Item 3D Town Attorney’s Report. 
 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman made a motion to approve the consent agenda minus the pulled 
item.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in favor. 
 
Note:  The pulled item was never discussed. 

 
A. Minutes – Sandra Novoa, CMC, Town Clerk  

 May 12, 2015 Regular Commission Meeting Minutes 
 June 09, 2015 Regular Commission Meeting Minutes 

B. Budget to Actual Summary as of April 30, 2015 – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town 
Manager  

            *C. Town Manager’s Report – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  
  

1. Bus Service – Bus Service Improvements and Operational Efficiencies 
2. See Click Fix 
3. Resort Tax Board Ordinance 
4. Historic Preservation 

Page 4



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 14, 2015 
 

  

3 

  
 

5. Ten Year Water Supply Plan 
6. Development Applications 
7. Code Compliance Cases Settled 
8. Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) 
9. Traffic Issues 
10. Police Department Events 
11. Information Technology & TV Broadcasts 
12. Town-Owned Seawall Repair 

 
            *D. Town Attorney’s Report – Linda Miller, Town Attorney  

         E.  Committee Reports – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  
 

- February 24, 2015 Pension Board Meeting Minutes 
- April 13, 2015 Special Pension Board Meeting Minutes 

                            
4. Ordinances  

A. Second Reading Ordinances 
 
1. Amendment to Section 90-51. Maximum Frontage of Buildings  - 

Commissioner Michael Karukin  
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 90 ZONING; AMENDING 
SECTION 90-51 MAXIMUM FRONTAGE OF BUILDINGS; 
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 90-51.1 CONTINUOUS WALL 
FRONTAGE; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES 
OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to defer to the next meeting on August 11, 
2015 at 7:00 p.m.   Mr. Kousoulas said he would speak on the item at the next 
meeting.   The motion received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all 
voted in favor with Vice Mayor Tourgeman absent. 

Passing the gavel, the Mayor asked, as a point of privilege, to take Item 9C next 
and made a motion to do so.  The motion received a second from Commissioner 
Karukin and all voted in favor with Vice Mayor Tourgeman absent. 

 

 

 

 

Page 5



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 14, 2015 
 

  

4 

  
 

B. First Reading Ordinances 
 

1. Corridor Analysis – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager {Linked to 
Item 9G} 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 90 ZONING TO IMPLEMENT 
THE CORRIDOR ANALYSIS PROPOSALS FOR THE AREA BETWEEN 
COLLINS AND HARDING AVENUES FROM 94TH STREET TO 88TH 
STREET; AMENDING SECTION 90-2 “DEFINITIONS”; AMENDING  
SECTION 90-44 “MODIFICATIONS OF HEIGHT REGULATIONS”; 
AMENDING SECTION 90-44.2; AMENDING SECTION 90-45 –SETBACKS; 
AMENDING SECTION 90-50 “ARCHITECTURE AND ROOF DECKS”; 
AMENDING SECTION 90-50.1 “ARCHITECTURE”; AMENDING 
SECTION 90-51 “MAXIMUM FRONTAGE OF BUILDINGS”; AMENDING 
SECTION 90-61 “PAVING IN FRONT AND REAR YARDS IN H31 AND H40 
DISTRICTS”; AMENDING SECTION 90-61.2; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance. 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item with visuals. 
 
Commission Karukin made a motion for discussion.   The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Cohen.  After some discussion Commissioner Karukin thanked 
the Town Planner for all her efforts on this subject. 
 

 Vice Mayor Tourgeman left at 9:50 p.m. 
 
Public Speaker George Kousoulas said this was a very good study.  He supports it 
but the only question he had was about the breezeway. 
 
Commission Karukin made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Olchyk and the motion carried 3-2 with Commissioner Cohen 
absent for the vote and Vice Mayor Tourgeman absent. 
 

 
  5.  Resolutions and Proclamations 

 
A. FY 14/15 Proposed Budget Amendment Resolution – Guillermo 

Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE ANNUAL 
BUDGET RESOLUTION ADOPTED FOR FISCAL YEAR 
OCTOBER 1, 2014 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015; FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET IN THE  

Page 6



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 14, 2015 
 

  

5 

  
 

GENERAL FUND, CAPITAL PROJECT FUND, POLICE 
FORFEITURE FUND, MUNICIPAL TRANSPORTATION 
FUND, WATER & SEWER FUND, MUNICIPAL PARKING 
FUND, SOLID WASTE FUND, AND STORMWATER FUND; 
AND OTHER ADJUSTMENTS TO THE BUDGET FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the resolution. 
Finance Director Donald Nelson presented the item.  Commissioner 
Olchyk asked if there were any new items not discussed and the 
response was yes. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to accept. The motion received 
a second from Commissioner Cohen.   The motion carried 3-1 with 
Commissioner Olchyk voting in opposition and Vice Mayor 
Tourgeman absent. 
 

B. Purchase a 2015 Ford F-250 P/U Extend Cab with Utility Box – 
Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, TO APPROVE THE 
PURCHASE OF A 2015 FORD F-250 PICKUP TRUCK 
PIGGYBACKING OFF THE FLORIDA SHERIFFS 
ASSOCIATION AND FLORIDA ASSOCIATION OF 
COUNTIES BID NO. 14-22-0904 FOR $32,770.00 FROM 
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT ACCOUNT NO. 401-9900-
536.64.10; PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL AND 
AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
*Item not discussed 
 

C. Purchase a 2015 CASE SR 160 Skid-Steer with Broom 
Attachment – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, TO APPROVE THE 
PURCHASE OF A 2015 CASE SR 160 SKID STEER LOADER 
PIGGYBACKING OFF THE STATE OF  FLORIDA TERM 
CONTRACT NO.  760-000-10-1 FOR $32,000.00 FROM 
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT ACCOUNT NO. 404-5500-
538.64.10; PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL AND 
AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
*Item not discussed 
 

Page 7



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 14, 2015 
 

  

6 

  
 

D. Coastal Issues Committee – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE COASTAL ISSUES COMMITTEE; 
PROVIDING FOR RULES AND PROCEDURES; PROVIDING 
FOR AUTHORIZATION AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the resolution. 
Town Manager Olmedillo presented the item. 
 
Commissioner Cohen made a motion to approve a Coastal Issues 
Committee.    The Mayor will be liaison.   The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in favor with Vice 
Mayor Tourgeman absent. 
 

      6.  Good and Welfare (Set for approximately 8:15 p.m.)   
Mayor Dietch opened the meeting to public speakers. 
Public Speakers: 
-Judith Shakvry, a business owner in Surfside, said the town has changed for the better 
and more tourists are coming in.   She feels retail space should be aligned with more 
parking facilities.  
-Norma Parron, President of the Mirage Condo Assoc. thanked the city for resolving the 
issue they had with an abandoned building next to them and the mosquito invested pool. 
Ms. Parron asked for help with the problem they are having with raccoons who come into 
the area and pool even when people are there especially children. 
-Larisa Alonso spoke of a problem of dust created by the demolition of a house next to 
hers and whether there was a code that after demolition the area had to be watered down. 
 
Town Manager Olmedillo said he would respond via email to Ms. Alonso.  Addressing 
the raccoon problem he will speak to animal control to see what can be done and the 
Mayor asked that he then post the information on the website. 
 
No one else wishing to speak the Mayor closed Good and Welfare and resumed to item 
9B. 
 

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 
Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda –  
 Item 3.   
 

8. Unfinished Business and New Business 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 14, 2015 
 

  

7 

  
 

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications 
 

A. Traffic Management Plan – Long Term Solutions – Guillermo      
Olmedillo, Town Manager  
Mayor Dietch recused himself due to a conflict as he resides on Byron 
Avenue. 
Police Chief Allen presented the item with an update and gave his 
suggestions. 
-Clara Diaz-Leal said she supports this plan as does residents in her area. 
-Jeffrey Platt expressed his views. 
 
Commissioner Cohen made a motion to approve.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Karukin.   The motion carried 3-1 with Mayor 
Dietch recused and Vice Mayor Tourgeman absent. 
 

B. Parking Garage– Guillermo Olmedillo, Town of Surfside  
Manager Olmedillo gave an update on the item and whether to issue an 
RFP on the 94th Street lot.   Manager Olmedillo asked for authorization to 
initiate the RFP to start the process and see what comes back.  However, in 
his opinion it is not proven that it is financially feasible to build just a 
parking lot as today many parking lots are aligned with offices and retail 
space.  In the interim we should look at other areas which may be more 
beneficial.   
Vice Mayor Tourgeman expressed his views on the shortage of parking 
and how this item has been discussed for a very long time.  Studies have 
been done and now it is time to take action.  He supports this type of 
parking and feels we must support the business district. 
Commissioner Karukin presented a slide show of the Surfside parking 
inventory which shows that 85% of the parking supports the business 
district.  The chart also showed a Town Hall option.  Before building a 
structure he believes we should define what we are trying to solve, condo 
parking, retail parking, etc.   Commissioner Olchyk thanked Commissioner 
Karukin for doing this as it shed more light on the subject. 
Mayor Dietch believes properties that are now being developed will have a 
surplus of parking.  He does not believe building a lot further north will 
help the district in the south.   There was further discussion on this issue. 
 
Mayor Dietch put the item on hold in order to proceed to Good and 
Welfare which has a time certain on the agenda.  
   
Public Speaker George Kousoulas gave a presentation showing various 
sites for a lot.  He disagrees with the Town Manager with moving on the 
94th Street lot and gave his reasoning with only building a facility just for 
parking.   He discussed in detail the Town Hall site as well as other sites.  
The Commission discussed their point of views on the subject. 
 
 
 

Page 9



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 14, 2015 
 

  

8 

  
 

The Mayor opened the item up for public speakers. 
Public Speakers: 
-Stefen Parker asked which two new developments were coming up on 94th 
Street.  He said he has never seen a parking situation in Surfside.   
-Daniel Gielschinsky – believes this issue is long overdue for action as 
parking is a problem and believes we should move forward with the  
RFI on 94th Street. 
-Sergio Castaneda said parking is a problem not only for retail stores but 
also services such as going to a bank.  He believes the best lot is the one 
behind CVS and explained why he thought so. He said his business is 
hurting because of the lack of parking spaces. 
-Jeffrey Platt believes part of the problem in the Abbott lot is that it is 
filled with construction trucks and employee vehicles and they should be 
moved to the 94th Street lot.  He does not believe we have to build a 
parking structure at this time.  If one should be considered he thinks it 
should be the Town Hall site. 
-Norma Parron related the problem with her condo which have two and 
three bedrooms and they have only one parking space.  She believes going 
south with parking is more feasible. 
-Donald Fowley read a letter from Mr. & Mrs. O’Hagan which urges the 
town to keep its uniqueness and feels we do not additional parking for only 
the few months out of the year during peak season.  Mr. Fowley feels if 
additional parking were to be built he favors the 93rd Street lot. 
-Clara Diaz-Parker says the study done is flawed and does not address 
everyone’s need.   She likes what Mr. Kousoulas presented as it takes into 
consideration the residents. 
-Mitchell Feldman said that from his perspective there is a need for more 
parking. 
-Deborah Cimadevilla asked what the financial commitment to the town is 
and where is the money coming from.   
 
The Mayor said great ideas were presented and we should reach out to 
private sectors and get some input.  The community as well as the 
Commission are divided on the issue.   Manager Olmedillo gave more 
input and suggested an RFI with a short turn around. 
 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman made a motion to approve authorization of an RFP 
on 94th Street.   The motion died for lack of a second. 
 
Commissioner Cohen made a motion to approve authorization of an RFI 
on the 93rd Street concept.   The motion received a second from 
Commissioner Olchyk.   The motion carried 4-1 with Vice Mayor 
Tourgeman voting in opposition. 
 

C. Beach Chairs Management– Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Manager Olmedillo explained they are looking at the possibility of 
mirroring the ordinance adopted by Sunny Isles Beach which includes an 
orderly display of beach chairs as well as percentage used.  He is asking 

Page 10



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 14, 2015 
 

  

9 

  
 

for direction from the Commission.   The Mayor would like the people 
who attended this evening to voice their opinion but suggested a workshop 
be held on the topic.  Commissioner Olchyk felt there was no reason to 
delay as everyone wants access to the beach and we should look at the 
recommendations of the Manager.  Commissioner Karukin agreed with 
Commissioner Olchyk but would like to see some guidelines provided by 
the Manager. 
 
Public Speakers: 
-Jeffery Platt first applauds the Commission for recognition of this 
problem.  He said beach chairs put on the beach during the day should be 
removed in the evening.  He also said only beach owned properties should 
be allowed to put their chairs out.  He also said we should look at the 
Haulover ordinance as well as Sunny Isles. 
-Joel Simmonds representing the Grand Beach Hotel said they are in favor 
of regulations as long as they are sensible.  He asks that the issue be 
discussed properly taking everyone into consideration. 
-Selina Calte feels if we have allowed hotels to be built then they should be 
allowed to have chairs on the beach and this applies to condos on the 
beach.  She does feel regulations are needed. 
-Deborah Cimadevilla said it is difficult to get used to all the hotels and 
construction that has come in and it has taken away the quaintness that 
once was Surfside.   She asked why chairs can’t be placed on a as needed 
basis instead of an overwhelming of beach chairs. 
-Sean McKeen said we do need some regulations. 
 
Commissioner Karukin said we should move forward and asked the 
Manager to also look at Haulover.  The Manager said he would look at 
other communities and their regulations.  
 
The Mayor asked the Town Manager to come back with some language 
and schematics or tables to help with this item. 
 
The Mayor asked if Item 9A be heard next and then 5D.   Commissioner 
Karukin made a motion to hear 9A next.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor with Vice Mayor 
Tourgeman absent. 
 

D. Ethics Ordinance Enhancement – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
 

E. Community Rating Systems (CRS) Program for Public Information 
(PPI) – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Building Official Ross Prieto presented the item. 
 
Passing the gavel, Mayor Dietch made a motion to accept.   The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor with 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman absent. 
 

Page 11



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 14, 2015 
 

  

10 

  
 

F. Appointment to the Police Retirement Trust Fund per F.S. Ch. 185 
(Verbal) – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Item not discussed 
 

G. Zoning in Progress – Ordinance - Corridor Analysis between Collins 
and Harding Avenue – Commissioner Michael Karukin {Linked to Item 
4B1} 
Direction was given to the Town Clerk to publish a Notice of Zoning in 
Progress. 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve.   The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Olchyk.   The motion carried 3-2 with 
Commissioner Cohen absent for the vote and Vice Mayor Tourgeman 
absent. 
 

H. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal Year 
Ended September 30, 2014 – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Item was heard as Item 1J. 
Enrique Llerena presented the report.   Commissioner Olchyk questioned 
the errors that had been found and why they had not been corrected 
especially ones that are repeated.  Finance Director Donald Nelson 
addressed the concerns of Commissioner Olchyk and gave an explanation. 
Manager Olmedillo also gave some explanations.  Commissioner Olchyk 
said, for the record, a specific error was made last year and they were 
assured it would not happen again and it has reoccurred.   Her feeling is 
that even if it is a minor error it should not occur again and someone 
should be held accountable.   Manager Olmedillo responded and said they 
would monitor this more closely in the future.  Vice Mayor Tourgeman 
agreed that this should not have happened again but feels we should not 
undermine this report by not signing off on it. 
  
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to accept and submit for 
recognition to the GFOA.  Director Nelson reminded everyone that last 
year the town of Surfside received the highest award from GFOA for its 
reporting standards in the County.  The motion received a second from 
Vice Mayor Tourgeman and all voted in favor. 
 

I. Florida for Solar Choice Support Resolution – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Olchyk and all voted in favor with Vice 
Mayor Tourgeman absent. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 14, 2015 
 

  

11 

  
 

 
      10. Adjournment   
   Any items not discussed will be carried over to the next meeting. 

The meeting adjourned at 11:02 p.m. 
 
 

  Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 

 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2015 

 
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, CMC 
Town Clerk 

 

Page 13



3B

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



3C

Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



3D

Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



3E

Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



3F

Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



4A1

Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



4A2

Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



4A3

Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



4B1

Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



5A

/August 11, 2015

Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



5B

/ August 11, 2015

Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



5C

Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



5D

Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



5E

Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



8A
/ August 11, 2015

Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



9A

Page 167



Town of Surfside 
Commission Communication  

Agenda # 

Agenda Date:  August 11, 2015 

Subject:   Miami-Dade County Historic Preservation Resolution 

From:  Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 

Background: 

In June 2014, the staff of the Miami-Dade Historic Preservation Board (Board) identified 
buildings along Collins and Harding Avenues as potentially historic structures. These include 
9016, 9024, 9040, 9048, 9056, 9064, 9149 and 9340 Collins Avenue and 9025, 9033 and 
9041Harding Avenue. The property owners were notified of the Board’s interest in these 
buildings through a letter each property owner received notifying them that their property was 
subject to a moratorium on all building permits until the Board held a public hearing to determine 
if the structure would be designated historic.  

When this occurred the property owners contacted the Town asking for assistance in this 
matter. At that time, the Town contacted the Board’s staff requesting a meeting to discuss the 
implications of this moratorium and inform them of the Town’s ongoing plans, including the 
parking structure analysis and the discussion of the Corridor Analysis on the block between 
Collins and Harding, which resulted in a number of deferrals of the historic designation hearing 
from the Board. Since that time some of the parcels have been designated historic, while other 
parcels are still under the moratorium.  

County Commissioner Heyman proposed two ordinances relating to Historic Preservation. The 
first an ordinance proposed amending the “opt-out” provision to allow any municipality to opt-out 
from under the County’s historic preservation jurisdiction and establish their own 
program/ordinance at any time. This item passed first reading by the full BCC on October 7, 
2014. It was then heard by the Cultural Affairs and Recreation Committee on December 17, 
2014. This committee voted to “lay the item on the table,” which means that it effectively died in 
its current state but allowed Commissioner Heyman to retain the ability to bring the item back no 
sooner than 3 months. However, if she opts to bring that item back, it will have to start the 
process over again at first reading.  Neither Commissioner Heyman nor her staff have indicated 
whether or not she plans to bring the item forward again from the beginning. 

9B

Page 168



Commissioner Heyman’s second proposed ordinance revision dealt with requiring 75% of 
condominium or co-op owners to consent to a petition by owner when petitioning the County 
Historic Preservation Board to request their property be considered for historic designation. This 
item passed first reading by the full BCC on December 2, 2014. It was then heard by the 
Metropolitan Services Committee on March 11, 2015. At this committee hearing, Commissioner 
Heyman suggested amending the 75% consent to 50%+1. However, due to lack of a second, 
the motion died in committee. That means that it will not move on to the BCC for second 
reading. 
 
On June 17, 2015, the Board approved a resolution to encourage incentives for historic 
preservation. This resolution recognizes the development opportunities in municipalities such as 
in the Town, and would like to work with the Town to encourage historic preservation initiatives. 
The resolution encourages the Town to consider making ordinance revisions that would 
implement a process by which owners of historically designated properties can apply for certain 
zoning requirement waivers for the purpose of saving historic buildings while also allowing them 
to more fully recognize the potential redevelopment of their property. Examples of these 
incentives would be reductions or waivers in minimum lot size, setbacks, minimum lot widths, 
maximum building footprint, green space, off-street parking, loading requirements or other lot 
development regulations.  
 
Staff is seeking direction from the Town Commission to determine if further analysis into these 
types of incentives is desired.  
  
 

Page 169



1 

Town of Surfside 
Commission Communication  

Agenda # 

Agenda Date:  August 11, 2015 

Subject:   Requiring additional windows for each façade   

From:  Vice-Mayor Eli Tourgeman 

Background: The Town’s zoning code provides a requirement for 10% 
windows per façade and per story of a single family home. There are 
situations in Town where they meet the 10% window requirement per 
façade, but there are blank walls that are too large in size such as the image 
below:  

9C

Page 170



2 

Recommendation: To direct staff to come back with an ordinance that 
requires additional windows every set number of linear feet as well as a 
minimum square footage requirement per façade.  

Page 171



9D

Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

August 11, 2015 
7:00 pm 

Town Hall Commission Chambers ‐ 9293 Harding Avenue, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

Page 1 of 1 

Agenda #: 

Date:    August 11 2015 

From:    Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

Subject:  Development Limits 

Objective:  To seek direction from the Town Commission whether it desires that the Town Manager, Town 
Attorney and Town Planner explore options to lower the allowable density in the H120 District in the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan and also limit the height of development in the H120 District in the Zoning Code to six 
stories. 

Consideration:  Setting development‐related policies are complex as consideration applies to varied 
stakeholders and interests, while placing resident interests first.  To frame the many issues surrounding 
development, Surfside prepared its first ever Five Year Financial Forecast (dated February 8, 2011) that 
looked backwards to understand where the Town had been, assessed our current condition and looked 
forward to help guide good policy setting to best strengthen Surfside’s future.  Following the acceptance of 
the initial Five Year Financial Forecast, the Town Commission provided clear policy direction, which in 
conjunction with favorable market conditions, has yielded a development renaissance in Surfside across all 
zoning districts with many projects reflecting less intensity of use and higher quality.  An update to the Five 
Year Financial Forecast was subsequently prepared by the Town Administration on September 9, 2013.  Both 
documents are attached for your situational awareness. 

No doubt, Surfside has experienced significant in‐fill development activities over the past five years and it 
has impacted the “quality of life” for many residents.  While many strong and interrelated protections are in 
place that have resulted in less intensive and higher quality projects, the quality of life impacts of large scale 
development projects have been expressed by many residents.  Notwithstanding the impacts, there are 
many benefits that will be enjoyed by our residents and visitors for many years to come.  These benefits 
include, but are not limited to a doubling of our tax base which will greatly reduce the reliance on taxes paid 
by residential property owners as well as a projected 200 percent increase in Resort taxes collected. 

The inventory of developable open space has decreased significantly and if current trends hold, the next 
development focus will likely include demolition of existing structures. To help manage the impacts of such 
activities it seems prudent to begin discussing the placement of development limits as it relates to density 
and heights. 

Recommendation:  Direct the Town Manager, Town Attorney and Town Planner to analyze to options to 
lower the allowable density in the H120 District in the Town’s Comprehensive Plan and also limit the height 
of development in the H120 District in the Zoning Code to six stories. 

9E

Page 179



Five Year Financial Forecasting for  

The Town Of Surfside, Florida  

Fiscal Years 2012 – 2016  

 

 

Requested by and Presented to: 

Mayor Daniel Dietch  

Vice Mayor Joe Graubart 

Commissioner Marta Olchyk 

Commissioner Michael Karukin 

Commissioner Edward Kopelman  

 

 

Prepared and Written  

Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager  

Martin D. Sherwood, Finance Support Services Director  

Carl A. Berkey‐Abbott, Budget and Management Consultant  

 

 

 

February 8, 2011 

   



Table of Contents 

Brief Description of Document    3

Brief History 3
Steps Toward Resiliency   4

Long Range Forecasting 4

General Assumptions  4

General Findings 5

Notes on Presentation 6

     General Operating Fund  7

           Millage Impact to Property Owners 12

     Capital Projects Fund  15

     Tourist Bureau Fund  16

     Police Forfeiture Fund  17

     Municipal Transportation Fund  18

     Water and Sewer Fund   20

     Municipal Parking Fund  22

     Solid Waste Fund  23

     Stormwater Fund  25

Appreciation  27
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

   



Brief Description of Document:  

This document contains a forecast of revenues and expenditures for the Town of Surfside, Florida for 
the period October 1, 2011 through September 30, 2016.  These dates cover the five fiscal years of Fiscal 
Year 2011/12 through 2015/16.   This document is based upon the current expenditure and revenue 
histories of the Town along with certain assumptions about forthcoming or continuing external trends.   
It serves as a baseline forecast against which the effects of certain policy and/or funding decisions may 
be compared.  It generally assumes the intent to continue on course with current service delivery goals, 
although, continued declines in the property values may cause the need for contraction in operations if 
new revenue sources are not developed.  The document is intended to become an element of the 
annual budget deliberations so that decisions are made both on an annual and long term basis. This is an 
initial effort and will be modified after Town Commission discussion on February 8, 2011.  

Brief History:   

The State of Florida has averaged at least one substantial tax reform per decade for the past few 
decades.  In general these “reforms” tend to limit the flexibility and autonomy of local governments 
while expanding inequities in the property tax payments made by our citizens.  At the same time, Florida 
remains a low wage, moderately high living cost state for its residents.  The combination of these 
realities coupled with a substantial international economic decline, have resulted in an environment of 
declining property values and rising costs for such staples as fuel.   

To address financial difficulty, the typical candidates for analysis are analyzed.  On the expenditure side, 
these steps include: reviewing pension and benefits, examining technology opportunities, reviewing 
office and janitorial supply expenditures, reducing energy consumption, reviewing risk management 
policies, reviewing contractual expenditures, restricting overtime usage, reviewing organizational 
structure, examining purchasing practices, and negotiating health care costs.  On the revenue side, staff 
has sought: to improve billing and collection practices, to develop and meet fee for services policies, to 
address fee for services subsidies, and looked for opportunities for intergovernmental cooperation.   

Consequently, this analysis has also incorporated a move toward sustainability of programs.  All Capital 
Improvement Projects and program modifications now include a statement of anticipated recurring 
costs and benefits associated with the adoption of programs/projects.  Not using non‐recurring 
revenues to support recurring operating expenditures is another way in which the Town of Surfside has 
moved toward financial sustainability.  This document seeks to answer the important question:  Will 
current policies be sustainable financially over the next five years?  The answer unfolds in this 
document.  

 

 

3 

   



Steps toward Resiliency:   

These and other practices to be introduced in the Fiscal Year 2011/12 budget should ensure the Town of 
Surfside remains financially stable in a steady state of service levels.  The corollary question to the one 
above is: Will the economy and our evolving population allow a steady state to be the underlying 
philosophy of the next five years of budget development or do we need to develop strategies that 
increase non ad valorem revenues and move our ad valorem (property tax) revenues to a more 
equitable balance between residential and commercial sources? 

Long‐range Forecasting:   

To achieve a resilient financial position, long‐term financial planning is critical as is institutionalizing 
financial policies related to: debt, reserves, ad valorem goals, property tax burden distribution, and 
diversification of alternative revenue sources.  Institutionalizing long‐term financial planning provides a 
number of advantages, including:    

 Helps prioritize services  
 Involves and focuses employees 
 Decentralizes budget responsibilities and holds Department Heads accountable 
 Stabilizes services and service levels which can be consistently funded 
 Encourages consensus from stake holders 
 Plays a role in optimizing public investments 
 Aids in avoiding potential emergencies / unanticipated challenges.   

Given the potential for changes in elected and appointed officials, policy direction, intergovernmental 
relationships, and a variety of other influences, it is tempting to discount the value of this process.  It 
should be noted, however, the more successful local governments utilize long range financial planning.   

General Assumptions:   

A variety of assumptions have been made regarding each of the nine funds analyzed in this report and a 
detailed list of all assumptions is appended to the end of this document.  Some assumptions, however, 
apply to multiple funds and are articulated here: 

1. If no action is taken, the Town of Surfside’s revenue streams will remain relatively flat or 
continue declining. 

2. Interest yields on reserves will continue to remain low . 
3. Real and personal property value assessments will continue to decline through at least January 

1, 2012 (impacting through at least Fiscal Year 2012/13). 
4. At current benefit levels, the Town of Surfside costs for employee health and life insurance may 

continue to increase at approximately 5% annually for the length of the forecast.  
5. Town of Surfside contributions to meet defined benefits pension payments could continue at 

their historic rate of increase of approximately 8% annually after an identified adjustment in FY 
2012.  Note: this increase is predominantly attributable to fund performance rather than 
increases in salaries or the number of employees.                       4 



6. Increases to costs of living will make their way to the United States resulting in inflationary 
pressures for general consumable goods of approximately three percent (3%) annualized in FY 
2014 and beyond and 2.5% annually in Fiscal Years 2012 and 2013.  

7. General and bargaining unit employees could receive a salary increase of approximately 1.5% 
annually. This assumption is subject to change based on the economy and the financial status of 
the Town each year.  It should not be viewed as the bases of future budget or collective 
bargaining negotiations.  Simply, we need to project something to complete the report.    

8. Worker’s Compensation costs will increase by approximately 3% annually. 
9. Electric Costs will outpace general inflation at a rate of approximately 2.5% annually. 
10. Fuel Costs will outpace other costs at an increase of approximately 5% annually for two years 

and then 3% thereafter.  
11. Existing programs are assumed to continue at current service levels.     

General Findings: 

To fund the same level of services over the next five years, the Town of Surfside should consider 
concerted action to the following funds: 

General Governmental Funds: 

  General Operating Fund:  Increases to taxable valuation (through well designed and 
environmentally sensitive infill of major sites), increases to non ad valorem revenues, and/or 
identifying substantial efficiencies in existing operational expenditures will be required to 
maintain existing service levels.  

  Capital Projects Fund:   Projects within the currently adopted plan will need to be have corollary 
operational funding sources that do not burden the General Operating Fund before a “go/no‐
go” decision is made.  

Special Revenue Governmental Funds: 

  Tourist Bureau Fund:  Funding available for Tourism related activities and quality of life 
programs will be limited and generally continue to decline unless/until additional resort units 
are added and existing units are upgraded. 

  Police Forfeiture Fund:  With the reduction of fund reserves, future funding is substantially 
limited unless a major unforeseen crime is solved and the Town of Surfside receives a major 
share.  The key issue with the fund is to be extremely careful to control the use of reserves for 
recurring expenditures.  

  Municipal Transportation Fund:  This fund has a healthy reserve and will continue in this mode 
through the next several years.  The key issue will be to use the revenues available prudently to 
enhance the downtown area and the residential neighborhoods within the constraints of the 
enabling legislation.  

5



Enterprise Funds: 

Water / Sewer Fund:  Rate adjustments as projected in the rate study completed for the Town 
of Surfside by TichlerBise and adopted by the Town Commission as part of the Fiscal Year 
2010/11 budget should be anticipated.  The key issue will be to stabilize these increases by 
holding down operational costs wherever possible.  

Municipal Parking Fund:  There is a need to analyze and prioritize potential projects to keep the 
fund’s earnings growing.  There is also a need to adjust rates in accord with market factors.  This 
fund could become a financial engine to support downtown improvements that are carefully 
selected to maintain our small Town feeling yet generate opportunities for existing and new 
businesses.   

Solid Waste Fund:  Rates may need modification in relation to the Town’s costs for tipping fees.  
The key to this fund is to review and adjust service levels which are very high in relation to peer 
cities and to determine if there are efficiencies that should be implemented through technology.  

Stormwater Fund:  Maintenance of existing rates for the next five years, with a possible 
downward rate adjustment in the last two years, is the most likely occurrence for this fund.   

 

Notes on Presentation: 

The Five Year Financial Forecast is designed to achieve these major goals: 

1) Modernize the Town’s annual budget development process to incorporate a best practice of 
including a five year projection of revenues and expenditures by fund, 

2) Assist the Town Commission in establishing reserve policies for each fund that allow smoothing 
of any potential rate increases and ensure that necessary repairs are made with available 
reserves to avoid the need for total replacement such as are currently needed for the water, 
sewer, and stormwater drainage projects,  

3) Analyze the financial impact of various decisions regarding economic/tourism investments such 
as downtown improvements on the property tax burden of our residents and the future 
economic base of our business community, and 

4) Analyze the property tax burden reduction potential to our residents if in‐fill development 
occurs in the remaining three significant sites located along the Harding / Collins corridors. 

Each fund’s information includes the following elements: 

 Introduction to Fund 
 Trends in the Fund 
 Assumptions Specific to the Fund 
 Forecast Chart 
 Forecast Chart Explanation 
 Funding Requirements on Current Course in Relation to Alternative Strategies          6 



General Operating Fund  

Fund Introduction:   The General Fund (or General Governmental Operating Fund) is the primary fund 
that supports governmental operations and services.  The General Fund makes up 34% percent of the 
total FY 2011 budget net of capital items.  The primary revenue supporting these services is ad valorem 
(property taxes) which account for approximately 65% of revenues to be received in the fund this year.  
By way of comparison, this percentage is 45% in Bay Harbor, 50%1 in Bal Harbour2, 50% in Miami 
Beach3, and 51% in Sunny Isles Beach4.  

Figure 1: Percentage of Total General Fund Revenues from Property Taxes  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Bay Harbor  Bal Harbor Miami Beach  Sunny Isles  Surfside 

Percentage of Total General Fund Revenues from 
Property Taxes

 

Fund Trends:  Many of the pressures impacting all local governments impact the General Fund.  
Revenues are declining or generally flat. Taxable valuations are declining. Inflationary pressures are 
expected. Services have already been adjusted in departments and we will continue to seek out 
efficiencies.  

Fund Assumptions:  Assumptions specific to this fund are: 1) property valuation will decline 
approximately 7% for Fiscal Year 2012 and an additional 3% for Fiscal Year 2013 before they begin to 
recover at a rate of 1.5 – 2% annually, 2) the forecast assumes that even with the decrease in valuation, 
the same level of revenues will be approved in the “roll‐back” rate, and 3) a factor of 2 percent in 
operating cost has been forecast for further service level adjustments. 

With the forecasted reduction in property valuation in Fiscal Year (FY) 2012 and FY 2013, roll‐back 
millage rates of 6.025 and 6.211 mills respectively would be needed to generate the same amount of 
revenue as the current year (5.6030 mills).  In FY 2014 – FY 2016, those rates would be approximately 
6.120, 6.0, and 5.882 mils respectively.  These millage rates are based on projections and assumptions 

                                                            
1 E‐mail from Alan Short, Finance Director of Bay Harbor 
2 From Adopted Budget Book on Town’s Official Website 
3 From Proposed Budget Book on Miami Beach Website 
4 From Adopted FY 2009 – 2010 Budget Book of Sunny Isles                         7 



which may be modified considerably once actual numbers are known and the Town Commission has 
provided policy guidance.     

Figure 2, below, reflects what would happen to millage rates under four different scenarios. “In‐fill” 
means that three significant undeveloped, or underdeveloped, properties are built out with hotel 
projects.  “Unassigned Reserves” are monies available in the General Fund above the $2 million in 
reserves assigned for hurricanes and other emergencies.  Drawing down these reserves allows the 
millage rate to be lower.  The most likely scenario where we can control millage significantly over the 
next five years is with environmentally sensitive in‐fill development.   

While line 2 (No In‐Fill / Use of Unassigned Reserves) increases greatly after 2013, this is the resultant 
from running out of unassigned reserves.  

Figure 2: Predicted Millage Rates With and Without In‐fill:  

(1)

(2)

(4)
(3)

5.0000
5.5000
6.0000
6.5000
7.0000
7.5000
8.0000
8.5000
9.0000
9.5000

FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016

No In‐fill/ No Use of Unassigned Reserves (1) No In‐Fill/ Use of Unassigned Reserves (2)

In‐fill / No Use of Unassigned Reserves (3) In‐fill / Use of Unassigned Reserves (4)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                        8



Table 1:  Example of 5 Year Dollar Impact for the Four Scenarios on Taxable Property Valued at $250,000 
in the Current Fiscal Year (FY 2010/11). 

 

Scenarios To Fund 
Forecast 

Current       
Fiscal Year 
2010/11 

Forecasted    
Fiscal Year 
2011/12 

Forecasted    
Fiscal Year 
FY 2012/13 

Forecasted    
Fiscal Year 
2013/14 

Forecasted    
Fiscal Year 
2014/15 

Forecasted    
Fiscal Year 
2015/16 

5 Year 
Total       

Increase 
to Tax 
Bill  
 

Net Taxable Mill Value5  $1,016,239  $945,102 $916,749 $930,500 $949,110  $968,093   
Roll‐back Millage Rate 
For Existing Properties6  

 
N/A  6.0250 6.2110 6.1200 6.0000  5.8820   

No In‐Fill / No Use of 
Unassigned Reserves ‐ 
Millage Rate  5.6030  6.5062 6.7803 6.8363 6.8293  6.8338   
Increase over FY 
2010/11 on $250,000 
taxable value  

 
N/A 

$112 $128 $164 $193  $225 $822

No In‐fill / Use of 
Unassigned Reserves ‐
Millage Rate  5.6030  6.0250 6.2110 7.3858 8.1973  9.1268   
Increase over FY 
2010/11 on $250,000 
taxable value  

 
N/A 

$0 $0 $294 $511  $754 $1,560

In‐Fill / No Use of 
Unassigned Reserves ‐ 
Millage Rate  5.6030  6.4533 6.4356 6.0539 6.0500  5.3862   
Increase over FY 
2010/11 on $250,000 
taxable value  

 
N/A 

$100 $95 $7 $6  ($149) $59

In‐Fill / Use of 
Unassigned Reserves ‐ 
Millage Rate  5.6030  6.0250 6.2110 6.1200 6.0000  5.8820   
Increase over FY 
2010/11 on $250,000 
taxable value  

 
N/A 

$0 $43 $22 ($6)  ($33) $26

8b 

                                                            
5  Based on current properties adjusted by anticipated changing valuations. For “in‐fill” scenarios, adjustments 
have been made to incorporate projected additional revenue. 
6  Based on the anticipated effect of valuation changes on the millage rate for existing properties.  
 



Table 1, above, provides a dollar representation of the impact of the four scenarios examined.  
Information specific to the four scenarios is contained within the darkened lines.  It should be noted that 
this Table is presented only for comparative purposes.  In other words, specific millage rates are 
provided for forecast comparison purposes only.    

The scenario for any given year which produces the most favorable result for property owners are 
highlighted.  The final column, “5 Year Total Impact to Tax Bill” illustrates the dollar effect of each 
scenario in total over 5 years.   

In the current year, FY 2010/11, application of the millage rate (5.6030) to $250,000 in taxable value 
results in a total Town of Surfside property tax bill of $1,400.   In the most financially favorable scenario 
for property owners (In‐fill / Use of Unassigned Reserves) the increase over five years would be 3.7% 
total (annualized at .74%) or $26.  While the least financially favorable scenario for property owners (No 
In‐fill/Use of Unassigned Reserves) results in a comparative increase overfive years  of 111% total 
(annualized at 22.2%) or $1,560.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8c



Figure 3, below, shows that difficult decisions may emerge for the Town no later than Fiscal Year 2013 if 
the identified in‐fill projects do not occur.  At that point, the portion of unassigned reserves available to 
offset increases to a roll‐back millage rate for property taxes will not be sufficient.  This condition is 
likely to result in service level cuts and creates the potential for millage rate increases beyond the roll 
back rate.  

Figure 3: Predictable Effect of Current Policies and Goals Without In‐fill on the General Fund: 

(1)

(3)

(4)

(2)

(5)

(6)
‐$5,000,000

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

FY 2011  FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016

Total Expenditures (1) Ad Valorem Revenues (2)
Non Ad Valorem Revenues (3) Total Operating Revenues (4)
Assigned Fund Balance (5) Unassigned Fund Balance (6)  

The chart below (Figure 4) demonstrates the effects that in‐fill of three properties will have on ad 
valorem (property taxes) within the Town of Surfside.  The bottom line assumes the roll‐back millage 
rate will be utilized each year.  The top line (with in‐fill) shows the total property tax revenues when the 
roll‐back rate is applied to the anticipated new property values then added to the “without in‐fill” 
amount.  

Figure 4: Predictable Effect on Property Tax Revenues With and Without In‐fill: 

$5,300,000
$5,400,000
$5,500,000
$5,600,000
$5,700,000
$5,800,000
$5,900,000
$6,000,000
$6,100,000
$6,200,000
$6,300,000
$6,400,000

FY 2011  FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016

With In‐fill Projects Without In‐fill Projects
 

9 



Figure 5, below, shows that with in‐fill and use of the ”unassigned fund balance” to close the forecasted 
budget gap, service levels can be preserved while aggregate property taxes are modified only by the 
value added through in‐fill development.  The $2 million assigned for emergencies would be preserved 
while utilizing the additional unassigned fund balance to close the forecasted budget gap.   

Figure 5: Predictable Effect of Current Policies and Goals With In‐fill on the General Fund: 

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)
(6)

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

FY 2011  FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016

Total Expenditures (1) Ad Valorem Revenues (2)

Non Ad Valorem Revenues (3) Total Operating Revenues (4)

Assigned Fund Balance (5) Unassigned Fund Balance (6)
 

Figure 6, below, (in contrast to Figure 5) shows that without in‐fill the strategy of using “unassigned fund 
balance” to fund the forecasted budget gap could only be utilized through Fiscal Year 2013.  This 
strategy is not recommended as it is not sustainable and soon depletes funding which could be utilized 
to maintain services.    

Figure 6: Predictable Effect of Current Policies and Goals on General Governmental Fund Balance 
Percentages of Operating Budget Without In‐fill: 

 

‐30.0%

‐20.0%

‐10.0%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

FY 2011  FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016

Unassigned Fund Balance 
As a Percentage of Expenditures

Unassigned Fund Balance % of Expenditures

10 



Figure 7, below, demonstrates the predictable effect on fund balance percentages should in‐fill occur.  
The assigned fund balance portion would remain at approximately $2.0 million dollars.  The unassigned 
fund balance would be utilized to smooth any revenue to expenditure differences over the projection 
period.  As a result, the unassigned portion would fluctuate between 4.6% and 12.6% of expenditures.  
In the final year, this percentage begins to grow again from a low of 4.6% in FY 2015 to 8.8% in FY 2016.   

Figure 7: Predictable Effect of Current Policies and Goals on General Governmental Fund Balance 
Percentages of Operating Budget With In‐fill: 

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

FY 2011  FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016

Unassigned Fund Balance 
As a Percentage of Operating Budget

Unassigned Fund Balance % of Operating Budget

 

Fund Forecast Chart Explanation:   As the Figures 6 and 7 illustrate, expenditures are forecast to exceed 
revenues consistent with the assumptions in the next several years if certain outcomes to increase the 
tax roll are not achieved. This includes: 1) a new commercial project at 92nd Street, 2) new construction 
at the Beach House property, and 3) replacement or upgrade of the Best Western Hotel at 94th Street.  
As shown in the chart, if these projects become a reality the General Fund will continue to grow its 
surplus and / or the millage rate may be held or reduced depending upon actions in future years.     

Funding Requirements on Current Course:  From FY 2012 through FY 2016 revenues are less than 
expenditures by $406,019; $523,116; $667,744; $788,357; and $922,699 respectively over the next five 
years without the in‐fill projects.  To make up these differences through a millage rate increase, the 
needed millage rates would be approximately: 6.6567, 6.9940, 7.0521, 7.0464, and 7.0523 mills 
respectively for years FY 2012 – FY 2016.  For forecasting purposes, the “in‐fill” alternative includes 
three possible projects:  1) a new commercial project at 92nd Street, 2) the proposed project at the 
Beach House Property, and 3) the creation of a new or upgraded hotel at the Best Western site.  The 
increases in ad valorem revenues would be $124,000, $214,000, and $264,690 respectively based on 
expected building costs of $20,000,000, $35,000,000, and $47,732,000 at the roll‐back millage rate.  
While these numbers are not precise, the analysis should be viewed as indicative of the difference 
between a “do nothing” strategy and a strategy which recognizes that supporting good, environmentally 
sound and community sensitive projects on the few remaining sites available in the Town of Surfside 
makes sense from a financial planning and tax equity standpoint.  

11



Millage Impact to Property Owners: 

The number of residential properties in the Town comprises 90.13% of the total number of 
parcels representing 88.5% of real property tax revenues received.   For Miami‐Dade County the number 
of residential properties comprises 84.85% of the total number of properties and 66.60% of property tax 
revenues received.   The difference in property type percentage burden in the Town is 1.63% while the 
difference in property percentage burden in Miami‐Dade County is 18.25%.  This information establishes 
that the tax burden for residences within the Town is greater than the tax burden for residences in 
Miami‐Dade County at large.  

The following table represents the portion of total ad valorem payments which are made by 
residential property owners in certain other Miami‐Dade municipalities.  It shows that in the 
municipalities that are similar to the Town of Surfside in composition (commercial to residential), it is 
much more typical for residential property owners to carry closer to 80% of the ad valorem burden.  Our 
residents carry 88.5% of the burden.  

Municipality 
Total Real Property 

Taxable Value 
Residential 

Taxable Value 
Res. % of 

Total 

West Miami $296,100,075 $192,020,416 64.85% 

M-D County (At 
Large) $182,073,857,313 $121,255,264,254 66.60% 

North Bay Village $672,564,043 $539,311,130 80.19% 

Bal Harbour $2,334,443,814 $1,882,407,198 80.64% 

Sunny Isles Beach  $4,754,229,343 $3,928,659,788 82.64% 

Bay Harbor Islands $594,127,026 $496,153,081 83.51% 

Surfside $1,057,460,764 $936,026,978 88.52% 

   

The percentage of ad valorem taxes paid for residential property in the Town of Surfside is not 
only higher than in similar communities and Miami‐Dade County at large, but the percentage is growing.  
As Figure 8 (below) shows, the Town’s residential property portion of the ad valorem burden has gone 
from approximately 83% in Fiscal Year 1995 to nearly 90% in three of the past four years.   Should this 
trend continue without strategic interventions by the Town’s leadership at all levels, residential property 
owners may be carrying as much as 92% of the total property tax burden by Fiscal Year 2016.         

 

 

 

 

12



Figure 8: Percentage of Town Property Taxes Paid For Residential Properties:  

78%
80%
82%
84%
86%
88%
90%
92%
94%

Percentage of Town Property Taxes Paid By 
Residential Property Owners

 

Figure 9 demonstrates that the Commercial Taxable value over the past ten years has 
experienced some increasing valuation, but compared to the significant increases in residential 
valuations has remained relatively flat.  The “Residential” category has experienced the most growth 
and comprises approximately 90% of all taxable valuation within the Town. 

 Figure 9: Town Commercial To Residential Value Comparisons: 

 

(1)

(2)

(3)

$0

$200,000,000

$400,000,000

$600,000,000

$800,000,000

$1,000,000,000

$1,200,000,000

$1,400,000,000

$1,600,000,000

$1,800,000,000

19
95

19
96

19
97

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

Residential Taxable (1) Commercial Taxable (2) Total Taxable (3)

  Part of the reason for this increase in burden to residential property owners is that the number 
of folios for commercial properties has decreased.  As Figure 10 (below) demonstrates, the number of 
residential properties has increased while the number of non‐residential properties (combined  

13 



“Commercial” and “other”) has decreased in the past ten years.  Part of this shift results from the 
conversion of commercial rental properties to condominiums.             

Figure 10: Town of Surfside History of Properties by Type:  

(1)

(2)

(3)

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Residential Properties (1) Non Residential (2) Total Properties (3)
 

  

  Despite the complex reason for the shift, residential property owners are carrying an unusually 
large portion of the total ad valorem tax burden in the Town of Surfside.   Ideally, the balance of 
responsibility would be re‐distributed such that residential property owners would not carry more than 
80% of total ad valorem burden.   The reduction in burden to residential property owners could provide 
relief to a significant portion of the Town’s population.  

  To accomplish the reduction in burden for residential property owners while continuing to 
provide municipal services at desired levels, the most immediate solution is expanding the taxable value 
of commercial properties.  The difference in taxable value between the 89 ‐ 90% residential percentage 
of total ad valorem payments and the target of 80% is $100,632,975 in value.  In other words, to restore 
a balance between commercial and residential tax burdens consistent with similar communities, the 
Town would need to add approximately $101 million in commercial property value.   Coincidentally, the 
estimated net value of the three in‐fill properties listed earlier would be approximately $102,732,000 
which would close this gap. Further upgrades to the downtown area and certain public‐private 
partnership projects could move the residential portion below the 80% target should that become a goal 
of the Town Commission.     

  Should the $101 million in commercial property development be accomplished, the residential 
property portion would meet the 80% target.   In other words, the class of residential property owners 
would be paying a smaller percentage of total Town taxes and there would likely be no need for a tax 
increase beyond the roll‐back rate in the foreseeable future.  If the Town Commission wishes to adopt 
future budgets below the roll back rate additional strategies will be necessary.   

14



Capital Projects Fund  

Fund Introduction:   The Capital Projects Fund is a governmental fund type without its own revenue 
stream(s) unless grants are received.  The Town Commission recently took action to increase grants 
through approval of the eCivis grant search engine.  Further, the financial forecast for the General Fund 
provides for $150,000 in transfers to the Capital Project Fund in each year for projects to be determined 
throughout the budget process.  The Capital Projects Fund reflects expenditures and funding for those 
projects greater than $25,000 which create enduring capital assets.  The capital assets accounted for in 
this fund cannot be associated with other enterprise and/or special revenue funds, hence, their general 
governmental nature.  In FY 2011, the fund accounts for the Phone System Upgrade, Public Safety 
Vehicle Replacements, and the completion of construction of the Community Center.   

The Capital Projects Fund is a general governmental fund as is the General Operating Fund.  The 
governmental funds (General Operating Fund and Capital Projects Fund) share their reserves so a 
separate reserve is allowed, but not required for this fund.  Currently, there is a fund balance for this 
fund sufficient to pay for the remainder of the Community Center Construction.  Transfers from the 
General Operating Fund will pay for the balance of approved projects.  

A supplemental vehicle to fund these projects is through impact fees from developers.   The manner in 
which these fees are calculated and collected is the subject of a separate future report.   

Figure 11: Fund Revenue to Expenditure Chart for Capital Projects : 

(1)

(2)
$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

FY 2011 
Adopted

FY 2012 
Forecast

FY 2013 
Forecast

FY 2014 
Forecast

FY 2015 
Forecast 

FY 2016 
Forecast

Expenditures (1) Revenues (2)
 

Figure 11 shows an anticipated reduction in most general governmental capital projects spending after 
completion of the Community Center in the current year.  To fund projects proposed for FY 2013 
(Beachwalk Lighting and Police Vehicle Replacement) additional income will be required (either 
appropriations from the unassigned General Fund reserves, impact fees or General Fund revenues.  

 

 

 

15



Tourist Bureau Fund  

Fund Introduction:   The Tourist Bureau Fund is a general governmental fund which accounts for special 
revenues generated through (and restricted by) Florida Statute.  The funds are generated by a 4% 
charge on certain resort properties and a 2% tax on certain food service establishments.  The funds are 
intended for tourism related promotional events and their use is articulated in and governed by the 
Town of Surfside Town Charter and State law.   This special revenue fund is encouraged to spend its 
funds to comply with funding requirements and maintenance of a fund balance is not required.  

Fund Trends:  The Revenues for this fund have decreased by an average of 5.6% annually for the past six 
years and are forecast to continue on this trajectory.   While the revenues for this fund are directly tied 
to tourism, there is historically no discernible correlation between revenue declines and changes in the 
economic climate as one might expect.  Factors which account for the declining revenues are: 1) 
reduction in qualified resort properties through conversion to condominium properties, 2) failure of 
qualified business owners to remit proper payment, and 3) not enforcing the tax on all eligible sources.  
To address the second concern, a resort tax auditor position was funded in Fiscal Year 2011.  

Fund Assumptions:  Assumptions specific to this fund are: 1) 25% of the Director’s position will continue 
to be funded in this fund, 2) the historical declines will continue or at least one more year, 3) condo 
conversions have generally stopped at this point stabilizing some of the decline, 4) the policy of reducing 
expenditures to match projected revenues will continue, and 5) no attempt to create unassigned 
reserves will be pursued.  

Clearly the continued decline in revenues is unacceptable and action must be taken to reverse the 
trends and accelerate revenue creation.  Those actions include the retention of the auditor (which will 
have a small to medium impact), the energizing of the downtown visioning process (which will have a 
major impact on the 2% food service tax) and creation of more environmentally sensitive hotel product 
(which will have significant impact on the 4% resort tax).   

Figure 12: Tourism Bureau Promotional Funds Forecast Chart:  

 

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

FY 2011 
Adopted

FY 2012 
Forecast

FY 2013 
Forecast

FY 2014 
Forecast

FY 2015 
Forecast 

FY 2016 
Forecast

Program Funds Without In‐Fill Program Funds With In‐Fill

16 



Fund Forecast Chart Explanation:   Like other special revenue funds, the expenditures made from this 
fund must fall into the conditions set for receiving the income/revenue.  As such, there is no need for 
the maintenance of reserves.  The excess of revenue over on‐going expenditures is the amount available 
for program operations.  The above chart shows the forecasted changes in funding available for tourism 
promotion under two scenarios.   

Figure 12 shows the difference that in‐fill can make on the funds available for enhancing the quality of 
life in the Town of Surfside.   Without in‐fill these funds are anticipated to stabilize after a slight decline.  
With in‐fill of the properties previously identified, the funding available for eligible activities may well be 
hundreds of thousands of dollars more.  It should be noted, that Figure 12 accounts for only the 
projected increases to the 4% Tourism Tax (applied to beds).  An increase to the 2% Tourism Tax 
(applied to food and beverages) is not included in the revenue estimates.    

The bottom line represents the continuation of declining revenues in this fund.   Forecast funding for 
eligible activities in this scenario falls from just over $83,000 in FY 2012 to a forecasted $76,755 in FY 
2016.  As a reference, in Fiscal Years 2007 and 2008, $145,255 and $105,853 respectively were available 
for eligible activities in Surfside.  This line forecasts the fund’s position if no new hotel rooms are added 
within the Town.  

The upper line represents the impact of completion of the three in‐fill projects.  In this scenario, the 
excess of revenues over on‐going expenditures represents the funding available for eligible activities in  
the Town of Surfside increasing to $189,797 by Fiscal Year 2012 – 2013 and approximately $400,000 in 
Fiscal Year 2016.  As a reference, Miami‐Dade County has estimated that Bal Harbour will receive 
approximately $1,860,700 for tourism revenues in Fiscal Year 2011.7  The increase assumes unit 
numbers comparable to newer developments and an occupancy rate of approximately 60%. 8  

 

Police Forfeiture Fund 

Fund Introduction:   The Police Forfeiture Fund is a general governmental fund which accounts for 
special revenues generated through (and restricted by) Florida Statue.  Once a forfeiture occurs at the 
task force level, funds are used to pay for expenses of the task force. The remainder is distributed based 
upon the number of officers each municipality has assigned to the Task Force.  Other funds may come 
from the Surfside Police Department conducting its own investigations that may result in seizures. Funds 
may also come from Surfside’s participation is a joint investigation with a Federal agency that results in 
asset forfeiture9.  The primary limitation on the expenditures is that they provide for a new / non‐
operational program and/or project aimed at reducing crime, drug awareness program and/or 
supporting new or expanded police initiatives.   

                                                            
7 E‐mail including payment from St. Regis in lieu of resort tax. E‐mailed Appendix E: Transient Lodging and Food 
and Beverage Taxes for Tourist Development, Convention Development, and Homeless and Domestic Violence 
Programs and Facilities ‐ $967,000 (p. 154).  
8 A 61% – 62.7% occupancy rate is projected by HVS (a leading consultant to the hotel industry).  
9 E‐mail from Chief David Allen January 2011                         17 



Fund Trends:  The Town of Surfside has utilized the accumulated reserves in the past several years.  
Historically, revenues are very sporadic.  Recently, more assets (illegal drugs, modified weapons, etc) 
have been seized rather than cash10.  Since the illegal drugs cannot be liquidated and turned into cash, 
the revenues available for distribution have declined.   

Fund Assumptions:  Assumptions specific to this fund are: 1) revenue collections will continue to be 
sporadic, and 2) the Town will continue to fund, through the General Fund, an Officer who participates 
in the Task Force.  

Figure 13: Forecasted Forfeiture Program Funds: 

 

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

FY 2011 
Adopted

FY 2012 
Forecast

FY 2013 
Forecast

FY 2014 
Forecast

FY 2015 
Forecast

FY 2016 
Forecast

Program Funds  Ending Restricted Fund Balance

Fund Forecast Chart Explanation:   As a special revenue fund, the expenditure of the revenues is 
restricted to specific uses.  Figure 13 above shows a decline in program funding from the current year 
which utilized fund balance to fund nearly half of the programs.    

Funding Requirements on Current Course:  To increase the revenues and provide for additional qualified 
expenditures, additional seizures of cash (or assets which can be legally converted to cash) would be 
required.  As revenues decline and the once much more robust reserves are reaching their end, a 
periodic evaluation of receipts to all true costs should be pursued.  

 

Municipal Transportation Fund  

Fund Introduction:   The Municipal Transportation Fund is a general governmental fund which results 
from restricted revenues from the Citizen’s Initiative Transportation Trust (CITT) program.  As with other  

   

                                                            
10 Based on discussions with Chief Allen during Departmental Budget Workshop meetings for FY 2011.                   18 



special revenues funds, revenues are only received if they are spent on particular types of qualified 
projects.  These projects generally include projects which will improve traffic safety or benefit or 
encourage the use of mass transit services.  Some elements of downtown and residential transportation 
projects are likely qualified expenditures.   

A Maintenance of Effort (MOE) is also required from the Town to continue to qualify for funding.  The 
MOE is a level of expenditure which the Town must dedicate to transportation purposes from other 
funding sources.  To receive the approximately $163,000 for transportation projects, the Town spends 
just over $62,000 from the General Operating Fund.  The recent proposals from Miami Dade County to 
resolve litigation from Miami Gardens and possibly Doral and Cutler Bay may diminish the MOE 
expenditures.   

Fund Trends:  The revenues for this fund result from the distribution of a one‐half penny tax on each 
gallon of gasoline sold in Miami‐Dade County.   Since Fiscal Year 2008 revenues have fallen.  Over the 
past several years, the Town has accumulated a positive fund balance in this fund resulting from 
receiving more restricted revenues than real expenditures on qualified projects.  Staff is studying all 
qualified opportunities to utilize these funds to improve transportation and will be making a 
presentation on potential uses to the Town Commission in the near future.    

Fund Assumptions:  Assumptions specific to this fund include:  1) revenues will continue to be limited, 2) 
the declining trend in revenues will continue through FY 2013 then begin to rebound modestly (3% 
annually), and 3) the debate regarding how the three cities incorporated since the tax was enacted will 
be resolved either by negotiation or litigation within the next two years.   

Figure 14: Municipal Transportation Program Funds Forecast Chart: 

 

(1)

(2)

(3)

$0
$50,000
$100,000
$150,000
$200,000
$250,000
$300,000
$350,000
$400,000
$450,000

FY 2011 
Adopted 

FY 2012
Forecast

FY 2013
Forecast

FY 2014
Forecast

FY 2015
Forecast

FY 2016
Forecast

Program Funds As‐Is (1) Program Funds 3 New Cities (2)

Ending Restricted Fund Balance (3)

Fund Forecast Chart Explanation:   Figure 14 shows that the current expenditure plan does not 
adequately provide for the use of surpluses in this fund.  As previously mentioned, a comprehensive 
presentation will be made soon to resolve this concern.  While a fund balance can be carried for a few  

19



years to pre‐pay portions of a project cost, administrators of these funds (CITT) may request repayment 
of the funds if they are not utilized.    

Funding Requirements on Current Course:  Adequate funding is available for qualified and needed 
projects.   

 

Water and Sewer Utility Fund  

Fund Introduction:   The Water and Sewer Utility Fund is an enterprise fund which relies upon user fees 
for revenues and borrowing for major capital projects.  The fund is established to provide for 
independent water and sanitary sewer planning, operations, and improvements.  

Fund Trends:  South Florida water experts have said: “the cheapest potable water from now on in South 
Florida is the water that isn’t used”.  Clean water sources are becoming more scarce in South Florida and 
are likely to continue to do so.  Costs for water supply and waste water treatment have been increasing 
and are passed on to municipalities that distribute water and collect sewage.  As a result of these costs 
and the implementation of overdue infrastructure repairs, combined with insufficient retained net 
assets, this fund has been strained in the past several years.     

Fund Assumptions:  The Town of Surfside commissioned a rate study in Fiscal Year 2010 with TichlerBise; 
Fiscal, Economic & Planning Consultants.  The study was utilized during the FY 2010/11 budget process  
and has been incorporated for this forecast.  Assumptions specific to this fund are: 1) water costs are 
forecasted to increase an average of 12% annually, 2) sewage treatment costs are forecasted to increase 
an average of 15% annually, 3) revenues have been adjusted in the forecast to adopt the rate 
adjustments proposed in the rate study, 4) retained net assets will be replenished, and 5) financing for 
capital projects will close without changes to the anticipated terms.  The anticipated debt service costs 
have been included in the expenditure projections.  While we are using the TichlerBise study for this 
report, the Administration is working with our Financial Advisor to develop strategies to help manage 
the need for the projected rate increases.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20



Figure 15: Water and Sewer Fund Revenue to Expenditure Chart (including debt service payments): 

(1)

(2)

(3)

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

FY 2011
Adopted

FY 2012 
Forecast

FY 2013 
Forecast

FY 2014 
Forecast

FY 2015 
Forecast

FY 2016 
Forecast

Operating Revenues (1) Loan Proceeds and Capital Expenditures (2)

Operating Expenditures including Debt Service (3)
 

Fund Forecast Chart Explanation:   Figure 15, above, shows the impact of expenditures for capital 
improvement projects (water system repair and sanitary sewer repairs) on Fiscal Year 2011.  The timing 
for borrowing is expected in FY 201011 pending the Financial Advisor’s recommendations.  By Fiscal Year 
2013 these projects should be completed.   

Figure 16: Water and Sewer Fund Net Assets Information: 

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016

Restricted for Renewal / Replacement (1) Restricted for Rate Stabilization (2)

Unrestricted Net Assets (3) Total Net Assets (4)
 

Figure 16, above, shows the complete plan for restricted and un‐restricted net assets.  These 
percentages are based on the TischlerBise rate study and show the reservation of net assets for future 
replacement, and reservation for rate stabilization, as well as the unrestricted net assets percentages of 
the anticipated operating budgets.  

 

21



Funding Requirements on Current Course:  With the rate study recommended rates adopted, this fund 
meets the revenue to expenditure test of liquidity.  There will be more detail provided as the financial 
advisors for the water, sewer, and storm drainage bond issue provides their recommendations.  

 

Municipal Parking Fund  

Fund Introduction:   The Municipal Parking fund is an enterprise fund which relies upon user fees for 
parking spaces and facilities as well as parking violations for revenues.  The fund is established to 
provide for public parking planning, operations, and improvements.  

Fund Trends:  The operations of this fund have been stable for a number of years and have kept pace 
with revenues over expenditures.  The retained net assets have begun to be utilized in recent years to 
make infrastructure improvements or acquire land related to parking.  Requested improvement costs 
exceed retained net assets.  Careful consideration and prioritization of these requests will need to be 
undertaken.  The operating revenue to expenditure comparison for this fund remains strong for the 
foreseeable future and in fact will increase greatly with the installation of the electronic multi‐space 
meters.    

Fund Assumptions:  Assumptions specific to this fund are: 1) the additional parking spaces at the 95th 
Street lot will add revenue to the parking system annually, 2) the electronic multi‐space meters will add 
$112,000 in revenue to the parking system annually, 3) capital needs for renovation of existing lots will 
require approximately $100,000 in Fiscal Years 2011 and 2012, 4) subject to substantial community 
input and policy discussion by the Town Commission, public private joint venture upgrades to the 
Abbott lot and the Harding and 94th Street lot may be included in the fund, and 5) additional land may 
be acquired to link the 94th and 93rd/Harding lots as well as properties near Town Hall.  For purposes of 
this report, it is assumed that the larger projects may require revenue bonds and that the smaller 
projects will be funded with reserves.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22



Figure 17: Municipal Parking Fund Revenue to Expenditure Chart: 

 

(1)
(2)

(3)

(4)

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

FY 2011
Adopted

FY 2012 
Forecast

FY 2013 
Forecast

FY 2014 
Forecast

FY 2015 
Forecast

FY 2016 
Forecast

Operating Revenues (1) Operating Expenditures (2)

Capital Projects (3) Year Ending Unrestricted Net Assets (4)

Fund Forecast Chart Explanation:   Figure 17 shows that operating revenues for this fund will continue to 
outperform anticipated expenditures thereby increasing unrestricted net assets.   Figure 18 highlights 
the strength of the unrestricted net assets in this fund and the availability of same for capital 
investment.  Both Figures 17 (above) and Figure 18 (below) anticipate expansion of the available parking 
facilities during Fiscal Year 2012.  Specific recommendations will be provided in subsequent discussions.   

Figure 18: Municipal Parking Fund Year End Unrestricted Net Assets as a Percentage of Operating 
Budget:  

 

0.00%

500.00%

1000.00%

FY 2011
Adopted

FY 2012 
Forecast

FY 2013 
Forecast

FY 2014 
Forecast

FY 2015 
Forecast

FY 2016 
Forecast

Municipal Parking Fund:
Year Ending Unrestricted Net Assets
as a Percentage of Operating Budget

 

Solid Waste Fund  

Fund Introduction:   The Solid Waste fund is an enterprise fund which relies upon user fees for revenues.  
The fund is established to provide for solid waste planning, operations (collections), disposal at landfill 
sites, recycling and equipment replacement.  

23 



Fund Trends:  During Fiscal Year 2010 this fund achieved a gain which removed the negative net assets 
which it had been carrying.  The operations of this fund are becoming more stable.  Revenues are 
projected to exceed expenditures and provide for well considered equipment replacement.  

Fund Assumptions:  Assumptions specific to this fund are: 1) waste disposal fees and recycling costs to 
the Town will not increase more than 3% on an annualized basis, 2) retained net assets will be 
replenished to achieve fifty (50%) of operating costs within the covered five year cycle, 3) increased 
operating costs to the Town will be passed on to end users, and 4) it is possible to smooth the need for 
increases by creating sufficient net assets each fiscal year to allow for the prudent use of those reserves 
to reduce or eliminate the need for annual rate increases.  Savings from new technology for collection or 
reduced collection day(s) are not included in the analysis.  

A note to assumption 4 above: to meet the 3% annualized increases to the Town, a 3% annual rate 
increase is assumed.   

Figure 19: Solid Waste Fund Revenue to Expenditure Chart: 

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

FY 2011
Adopted

FY 2012 
Forecast

FY 2013 
Forecast

FY 2014 
Forecast

FY 2015 
Forecast

FY 2016 
Forecast

Operating Revenue (1) Operating Expenditures (2)

Capital Expenditures (3) Year End Unrestricted Net Assets (4)
 

Fund Forecast Chart Explanation:   Figure 19, above, shows the revenues outpacing expenditures in each 
year and the building of the net asset amount.  Figure 20, below, identifies the retained net assets 
amount as a percentage of the annual operating budget.  This progressive building of same is the device 
which better ensures sufficient funds to smooth future increased costs to the Town and reduce or 
eliminate the need to pass the rate increase to residents.  

 

 

 

 

24



Figure 20: Solid Waste Fund Year Ending Unrestricted Net Assets as a Percentage of the Operating 
Budget:  

0.0%
10.0%
20.0%
30.0%
40.0%
50.0%
60.0%

FY 2011
Adopted

FY 2012 
Forecast

FY 2013 
Forecast

FY 2014 
Forecast

FY 2015 
Forecast

FY 2016 
Forecast

Solid Waste Fund: 
Year Ending Unrestricted Net Assets
As a Percentage of the Annual Budget

 

Funding Requirements on Current Course:  Without implementation of the rate increase to meet 
increased costs to the Town of Surfside for recycling and waste tipping fees, expenditures would exceed 
revenues every year.  If the Town increases its rates by the same percentage increase the Town has to 
pay, it should remain in a net positive position.  When the revenue to expenditure ratio is favorable the 
addition of more customers will have a positive benefit to this fund. Ultimately, this benefit can be 
shared with all solid waste customers.  

 

Stormwater Fund  

Fund Introduction:   The Stormwater fund is an enterprise fund which relies upon user fees for revenues.  
The fund is established to provide for stormwater drainage planning, operations and improvements.  

Fund Trends:  The operations of this fund are generally stable.  The need to implement stormwater 
improvements (and meet the requirements of a Consent Decree with Miami Dade County DERM) has 
created a spike in capital expenditures utilizing revenue bond funds in FY 2011 and FY 2012 and resulted 
in the need to increase the stormwater assessment.  The spikes are related to capital infrastructure 
improvements.  Bonds will be issued for this project and the debt service on those bonds is included in 
the expenditure numbers.   

Fund Assumptions:  Assumptions specific to this fund are: 1) the stormwater project will be completed 
as planned, 3) the new recurring operating costs (most particularly electric use related to running and 
maintaining the pumps stations and debt service payments) will occur, and 3) reserves are identified to 
exceed a preliminary target of fifty percent of operating by the end of the covered five year cycle.  As 
with the water and sewer bond issue, this planned growth of reserves may be utilized to smooth 
possible future rate increases.                            25 



Figure 21 shows that very little change is anticipated in either the revenues or expenditures for this 
fund.  The expenditures are budgeted to include re‐building the fund balance to smooth potential future 
increases and potentially secure better borrowing terms for the revenue bond.   

Figure 21: Stormwater Fund Revenue to Expenditure Chart (including debt service payments): 

(2)

(1),(3)
(4)

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

FY 2011
Adopted

FY 2012 
Forecast

FY 2013 
Forecast

FY 2014 
Forecast

FY 2015 
Forecast

FY 2016 
Forecast

Operating Revenues (1) Capital Revenues and Expenses (2)

Operating Expenditures (3) Year End Unrestricted Net Assets (4)
 

Fund Forecast Chart Explanation: Figure 22, below demonstrates the growth of the reserves as a 
percentage of the annual budget.  The preliminary target of 50% reserves is met at the end of Fiscal Year 
2013 (September 30, 2013).  It may be possible to lower rates if this projection proves true.   

Figure 22: Stormwater Fund Year Ending Unrestricted Net Assets as a Percentage of the Operating 
Budget: 

 

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

FY 2011
Adopted

FY 2012 
Forecast

FY 2013 
Forecast

FY 2014 
Forecast

FY 2015 
Forecast

FY 2016 
Forecast

Stormwater Fund:
Year Ending Unrestricted Net Assets 
As a Percentage of the Annual Budget

 

 

26



Funding Requirements on Current Course:  On the current course, the operating revenue to expenditure 
ratio in this fund is forecast to be slightly favorable for the next several years. As with the other 
enterprise funds, the addition of new customers in a favorable environment increases profitability and 
ultimately provides an opportunity for future relief for all stormwater customers.  

 

Appreciation:  It is necessary to thank Finance Director Martin D. Sherwood and Budget and 
Management Consultant Carl A. Berkey‐Abbott for their efforts in creating this document.  We 
collectively wish to thank the Town Commission for their foresight and strategic thinking that requested 
this document to be prepared. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27  






































































	3A - Minutes
	3B - Budget to Actual
	3C - Town Manager Report
	3D - Town Attorney Report
	3E - Committee Reports
	3F - Renewal of Voluntary Cooperation Mutual Aid Agreement with the South Florida Money Laundering Strike Force
	4A1 - Maximum Frontage
	4A2 - Corridor Analysis
	4A3 - Single Family District Paint Colors
	4B1 - Beach Furniture Ordinance
	5A - Purchase a F-250 Pick up for the Water and Sewer Department
	5B - Purchase a 2015 CASE SR 160 Skid-Sterr with broom Attachment
	5C - South Florida Mayor's Beach Alliance
	5D - Human Trafficking
	5E - Florida for Solar Choice Support Resolution
	8A - Ethics Ordinance Enhancement
	9A - Parking Meter Rate Increase
	9B - Miami Dade County Historic Preservation Resolution
	9C - Requiring Additional Windows for Each Facade
	9D - Paced Development
	9E - Development Limits



